

ENROLLED SENATE  
BILL NO. 887

By: Monson of the Senate

and

Seikel, Askins and Glover  
of the House

An Act relating to children and schools;  
amending 10 O.S. 1991, Section 411, as amended  
by Section 1, Chapter 13, O.S.L. 1992 (10 O.S.  
Supp. 1997, Section 411), which relates to  
immunizations; expanding list of immunizations  
required for certain purpose; providing  
procedures for altering of certain list by the  
State Board of Health; amending 70 O.S. 1991,  
Section 1210.191, which relates to certification  
of school children; expanding list of required  
immunizations; removing obsolete immunization  
from list; providing procedures for altering of  
list by certain entity; and providing an  
effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA:

SECTION 1. AMENDATORY 10 O.S. 1991, Section 411, as  
amended by Section 1, Chapter 13, O.S.L. 1992 (10 O.S. Supp. 1997,  
Section 411), is amended to read as follows:

Section 411. A. No person, firm, corporation, partnership or  
other legal entity operating a day care center or day care home in  
this state shall cause or permit a minor child two (2) months of age  
or older to be admitted to such facility unless and until the parent  
~~or~~, guardian, or other related person of ~~said~~ such child presents  
certification from a licensed physician or authorized representative  
of any state or local department of public health that such child  
has received or will receive immunization at the medically  
appropriate time against diphtheria, pertussis, tetanus, haemophilus  
influenzae type B (HIB), measles (rubeola), rubella, varicella, and  
poliomyelitis; or presents such certification that the child is  
likely to be immune as a result of the disease. Provided, however,  
that in the event the parent, guardian, or other person presenting a  
child for admission to a day care center or day care home certifies  
in writing that a family emergency exists, the requirement imposed  
by this section may be waived for a period not to exceed thirty (30)  
days. Such certification shall be made prior to the provision of  
care. No such waiver shall be knowingly permitted more than once  
for any child.

B. The State Board of Health, by rule, may alter the list of  
immunizations required under this section after notice and hearing.  
Any change in the list of immunizations required shall be submitted  
to the next regular session of the Legislature and such change shall  
remain in force and effect unless and until a concurrent resolution  
of disapproval is passed. Hearings shall be conducted by the State  
Board of Health, or such officer, agents or employees as the State

Board of Health may designate for that purpose. The State Board of Health shall give appropriate notice of the proposed change in the list of immunizations required and of the time and place for hearing. The change shall become effective on a date fixed by the State Board of Health. Any change in the list of immunizations required may be amended or repealed in the same manner as provided for its adoption. Proceedings pursuant to this subsection shall be governed by the Administrative Procedures Act.

SECTION 2. AMENDATORY 70 O.S. 1991, Section 1210.191, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1210.191 ~~(a)~~ A. No minor child shall be admitted to any public, private, or parochial school operating in this state unless and until such child can present certification is presented to the appropriate school authorities ~~certification~~ from a licensed physician, or authorized representative of the State Department of ~~Public~~ Health, that such child has received or is in the process of receiving, immunizations against diphtheria, pertussis, tetanus, haemophilus influenzae type B (HIB), measles (rubeola), ~~(rubella),~~ poliomyelitis, and ~~smallpox~~ varicella, or is likely to be immune as a result of the disease.

~~(b)~~ B. ~~Immunization tests~~ Immunizations required, and the manner and frequency of their administration, as prescribed by the State Board of Health, shall conform to recognized standard medical practices in the state. The State Department of ~~Public~~ Health shall supervise and secure the enforcement of the required immunization program. The State Department of Education and the governing boards of the school districts of this state shall render reasonable assistance to the State Department of ~~Public~~ Health in the enforcement of the provisions hereof.

~~(c)~~ C. The State Board of Health, by rule, may alter the list of ~~immunization tests~~ immunizations required after notice and hearing. Any change in the list of ~~immunization tests~~ immunizations required shall be submitted to the next regular session of the Legislature and such change shall remain in force and effect unless and until a concurrent resolution of disapproval is passed. Hearings shall be conducted by the State Board of Health, or such officer, agents or employees as the Board may designate for that purpose. The State Board of Health shall give appropriate notice of the proposed change in the list of ~~immunization tests~~ immunizations required and of the time and place for hearing. The change shall become effective on a date fixed by the State Board of Health. Any change in the list of ~~immunization tests~~ immunizations required may be amended or repealed in the same manner as provided for its adoption. Proceedings pursuant to this subsection shall be governed by the Administrative Procedures Act.

SECTION 3. This act shall become effective November 1, 1998.

Passed the Senate the 23rd day of February, 1998.

President of the Senate

Passed the House of Representatives the 2nd day of April, 1998.

Speaker of the House of  
Representatives